ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, | NTERNATI ONAL
TRADE AND TOURI SM
April 3, 2007
5:29 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Mark Neuman, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Andrea Dol |
Representati ve M ke Doogan

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Bill Thomas

COW TTEE CALENDAR
PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA SEAFOOD MARKETI NG | NSTI TUTE

- HEARD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 217
"An Act relating to required onboard disclosures and displays
about tours, flight seeing operations, ot her shor esi de
activities, and visitors bureaus; and providing for an effective
date. "

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 217

SHORT TITLE: TOURI SM DI SCLOSURES AND NOTI CES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HOLMES

03/ 22/ 07 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 22/ 07 (H EDT, JUD

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -1- April 3, 2007



04/ 03/ 07 (H EDT AT 5:30 PM CAPI TOL 106
W TNESS REG STER

RAY RU TTA, Executive Director

Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute (ASM)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided the presentation on the Al aska
Seaf ood Marketing Institute.

JOHN VWHI TE, Owner

Nenana Raft Adventures

Heal y, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

STEVE H TES, Owner

Skagway Street Car Conpany

Skagway, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

TOM TOUGAS, Omner

Four Seasons Tours;

Al aska Coach Tours

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

BRUCE BUSTAMANTE, Presi dent

Anchorage Convention and Visitors Bureau (ACVB)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

RON PECK, President and Chief Qperating Oficer

Al aska Travel Industry Association (ATIA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director

Anmeri can Associ ation of Retired Persons (AARP)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

KAREN HESS, Owner

Chi | kat Ri ver Adventures

Hai nes, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

CH P THOVA

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 2- April 3, 2007



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

M KE W NDRED, Enpl oyee

Al aska Travel Adventures, Inc.

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

JEREMY CEl SER, Enpl oyee

Gast i neau Cui di ng;

Pr esi dent

Juneau Chapter

Al aska Travel |Industry Association (ATIA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Speaking as an enployee of Gastineau
@Quiding, testified in support of HB 217.

BOB JANES, Owner

Gastineau Cuiding

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 217.

BOB WYSOCKI, President and Chief Executive Oficer

Huna Tot em Cor porati on (Huna Totem

lcy Strait Point

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 217.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R MARK NEUMAN cal | ed the House Special Committee on Econom c

Devel opnent, International Trade and Tourism neeting to order at
5:29:55 PM Representatives Doogan, Gatto, Doll, and Neuman
were present at the call to order. Representati ves Kohri ng,

Lynn, and Johansen arrived as the neeting was in progress.

Presentation: Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute

5:30: 28 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that the first order of business woul d be
a presentation by the Al aska Seaf ood Marketing Institute (ASM).

5:30: 59 PM

RAY RUI TTA, Executive Director, Al aska Seafood Marketing
Institute (ASM), showed the commttee sone of the current

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 3- April 3, 2007



advertisenments broadcast nationally on the Food Network. He
hi ghlighted that the advertisenents attenpt to capitalize on the
beauty of Alaska and indirectly support the tourism industry.
He then began his PowerPoint presentation. Slide one, "Wat is
Al aska Seafood Marketing Institute?", indicated that ASM is a
partnership of public and private sectors established 25 years
ago and has been reorgani zed to include seven board nenbers who
are appointed by the governor. The ASM mssion is to increase
the economc value of the Alaska seafood resource which is
acconpl i shed by pronoting the seafood industry from the point of
harvest to the consunption of the product. M. Ruitta stated
that ASM's ultimate goal is to encourage consunmers to pay a
little nore for a prem um product.

5:35:24 PM
CHAI R NEUMAN asked for information regarding ASM's budget.
5:35:39 PM

MR RU TTA pointed out that Alaska seafood represents $1.4
mllion in direct paynents to fishernen for their harvest. The
core funding for ASM is provided by processors who pay a
vol untary seafood marketing assessnent anounting to 0.5 percent
of the first value of what they process. This assessnent
provi des about $7 mllion annually in core funding that is then
used to | everage federal funding through the U S. Departnent of
Agriculture (USDA), Foreign Agricultural Service WMarket Access
Pr ogram Addi tional funding, for a total FY 07 budget of $19
mllion, was provided through the Al aska Fisheries Marketing
Board and the general fund. The FY 08 budget is estimated to be
$16.5 mllion, and this reduction will result in a dimnished
advertising program

5:38:16 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN questioned whether ASM w Il receive general funds
fromthe FY 08 budget.

MR. RU TTA confirnmed that $1 mllion in general funds has been
requested again this year.

5:38:40 PM

MR. RU TTA then displayed a pie chart illustrating that ground
fish species provide al nost 50 percent of the total value of the
seaf ood marketing assessnent. Hal i but and sabl efish contribute

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -4- April 3, 2007



20 percent of val ue. There is a significant disparity between

the tonnage of harvested fish and the commercial val ue. M.
Ruitta stressed that over 5 billion pounds of Al aska seafood is
mar ket ed. He then turned to sone of the threats and

opportunities that face the industry. Al aska is the nodel for
the world in sustainability, which is mandated by the state
constitution. M. Ruitta informed the commttee that Alaska's
practices are simlar to the science supported principles
encouraged by the North Pacific Fisheries Managenent Council and
the future |ooks good regarding this issue. The question of
wild versus organic is currently creating confusion in the
i ndustry. Sonme foreign farned seafood is identified as organic
and ASM is working to inform consuners that wild is superior to
organic, and to fight efforts to have the organic designation
for U S farned fish. Currently, the industry is doing wel
with the exception of king crab, which, due to inports from
Russi a, has dropped in value by 50 percent.

5:42: 43 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN asked about the challenges of inport and export
mar ket s.

MR RU TTA said that |low inport and high export tariffs are
problematic for the industry. For exanple, Europe assesses a 15
percent prem um on Pacific halibut, but not on Atlantic halibut.
Val ued- added products are assessed heavy tariffs as well. In
addition, China, although a large potential market, sets a very
high tariff on finished, rather than raw, products.

5:44: 06 PM

MR. RU TTA continued his presentation by informng the commttee
that aquaculture continues to be a serious challenge for the
i ndustry. The availability of farnmed whitefish varieties are a
threat to the pollock, halibut, and sablefish fisheries. He
said that talapia is a vegetarian fish that grows al nost
anywhere, is now the fastest growing inport in the U S. nmarket,
and wll threaten the value of cod and halibut. M. Ruitta
expl ai ned that Alaska harvests 5 billion pounds of seafood but
only provides 2 percent of the world s supply. This disparity
is due to the high cost of transportation and processing; Al aska
can only conpete at the higher level of prem um valued fish and
not on a commodity basis. For exanple, the sal non harvest stays
within the range of biological Iimts and is a sustainable
resource; however, the aquaculture industry can grow its
harvest, and Al aska can not grow the salnon harvest. Simlarly,

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 5- April 3, 2007



Al aska's pollock harvest is stable, whereas, the tal apia harvest
continues to grow and will drive the price of pollock down.

5:47:09 PM
CHAI R NEUVAN asked for clarification on how the world market
brings the prices down for the fish ~caught by Alaska's

commerci al fishernen.

MR. RU TTA further explained that the gl obal seafood market is

growing due to the large nunmber of aquaculture products. M.
Ruitta returned to the subject of challenges and opportunities
to the industry. He said that consuners around the world are

interested in healthful eating and in the value of onega 3s.
WI!ld seafood is accepted to be the best source for onega 3s,
t hough ot her options are becom ng avail able. However, confusion
over seafood contamnants inpairs the market. The ASM nust
continue to enphasize that Al aska's seafood is nearly
contamnant free and to work closely with the Departnent of
Health and Social Services (HESS) and the Departnent of
Envi r onnment al Conservati on ( DEC) to provi de i nformation
regarding the safety of Alaska's seafood. M. Ruitta reiterated
that the seafood prices, particularly halibut, are doing well

with the exception of king crab. It is extrenmely difficult to
conpete with nations such as China, Norway, and Chile, that
spend mllions of dollars for seafood nmarketing. I n addition,

Al aska's geographic distance from its narket drives up
producti on cost.

5:52: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whether farmed fish have a different
colored flesh than wild fish.

MR. RU TTA answered yes, artificial additives are put in the
feed to change the flesh to red.

5:52:41 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN asked whether ASM narketing has resulted in higher
prices for halibut.

MR. RU TTA responded that ASM has established a powerful brand
name for Al aska's seafood; however, to determne the specific

inpact is difficult. He pointed out that the rise in prices
coincides with ASM's active marketing canpaign. M. Ruitta
returned to the PowerPoint presentation. He noted that the

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 6- April 3, 2007



val ue of seafood has steadily increased, not from volune, but
from higher prices, and that the expectation is that revenue in
2006 will be equally high or higher. Specifically, the sal non
prices are returning to their highest |evels.

5:56: 18 PM

MR. RU TTA then described ASM's international marketing efforts
in Japan, China, and the European Union (EU). Japan is Al aska's
| argest international seafood custoner; however, for the first
time, the EU inported nore salnon than Japan. He said this is
an indication of Europe's renewed interest in seafood and ASM's
di verse international marketing canpaign

5:57:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN recalled his opportunity to go to Japan for
the Special Aynpics and he said that he was hosted in Tokyo by
ASM . He expressed his inpression that ASM representatives are
very know edgeabl e of their products and of the Japanese narket.

5:59: 01 PM

CHAIR NEUVAN requested that M. Ruitta describe a European
mar keting tour.

MR. RU TTA descri bed the European Seafood Show that will be held
in Brussels in My, 2007. He noted that sales directly
following last vyear's show anounted to approximtely $104
mllion. The cost to sponsor the show is approxi mately $400, 000
to $500, 000.

6: 00: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how ASM and Wrld Trade Center Al aska
wor k t oget her

MR RU TTA replied that ASM exchanges marketing information
with Wrld Trade Center Al aska and the Al aska Travel Industry
Associ ati on (ATI A) whenever possi bl e.

6:01:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked whether ASM works with any type of
regul at ory agency.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -7- April 3, 2007



MR. RU TTA answered that ASM's technical program works with the
U S. Food and Drug Association (FDA), the U S. Departnent of
Agriculture  (USDA, and the Uni ted Nations Alinentarius
Comm ssion (Codex), which set standards for food quality and
safety. Although ASM has no regulatory powers, it serves as a
resource to the industry and to state, nati onal , and
i nternational agencies.

6: 02: 33 PM

MR. RU TTA further described the European Union as a m xture of
mature and energing markets, including the United Kingdom
Russia, Eastern Europe, Czechoslovakia, and Ukraine. China is
still an energing market and ASM is maintaining an active
presence there as China begins to increase the size of its
m ddl e cl ass. M. Ruitta pointed out that in countries where
ASM is marketing, seafood demand has grown by 44 percent; in
countries lacking an ASM canpai gn, seafood demand has grown by
24 percent. The U S. market is also growing, particularly for

sockeye. Many U. S. consuners are re-discovering Al aska seaf ood
and ASM is advertising heavily in the U S. in nagazines and on
tel evi si on. Tel evi si on advertising began for the first tine on
the Food Network in 2006, and has increased ASM's nmarketing

presence by five-fold. Tel evision advertising reaches 193
mllion households and the target audience is wonen aged 35-54
and with a household inconme of over $75, 000. Adverti sing
canpaigns will often tie in with the tourism industry and
i ncl ude cruise pronotions. M. Ruitta concluded by saying that
a consuner is 77 percent nore likely to purchase salnon or
hali but from Alaska than from another source. Thus, ASM
believes it is contributing to the rising value of Al aska's
seaf ood. Present and future ASM marketing wll focus on

foreign consuners, in pronoting the purchase of frozen seafood,
and on continuing the nessage that wild Al aska seafood is the
best in the world.

6: 09: 19 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN recogni zed Representative Thomas as a commerci al
fisherman and asked him to advise the commttee about how the
| egi sl ature can assist the conmmercial fishing industry.

6: 09: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BILL THOVAS, Al aska State Legislature, draw ng

upon his many years of experience as a comercial fisherman,
informed the conmttee that ASM's efforts have led to nore

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 8- April 3, 2007



nmoney for fisherman. He pointed out that the fishing industry
pays a 3 percent raw fish tax of which 1.5 percent stays in the
| ocal conmunities. Representative Thomas opined that the
| egi sl ature should continue its support of ASM and the Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&G) . The ADF&G needs funding to
conplete research and fish surveys. Representative Thomas
recalled that |ast year an additional $120,000 was allocated to
ADF&G for ground crab research and the result was an additiona
t hree weeks of fishing.

6:12: 13 PM

CHAI R NEUVMAN asked whether the Al aska Industrial Devel opnment and
Export Authority (AIDEA) was assisting commercial fisherman with
refrigerated salt water and flash-freezing.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS replied that federal and state funds are
avai l able for fisherman. He pointed out that it is incunbent on
the fisherman, wth or wthout incentives, to maintain the
quality of the fish and protect the market.

6: 13: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked whether fishernen are concerned
about fish quality.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS replied yes, and said that how a fish is
handl ed determnes its marketability.

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHANSEN further asked whether the fishing
industry is responding to the fact that fish quality is
i mportant.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS replied yes; his partnership with Ccean
Beauty requires ice and bleeding at the tinme of the catch, and
fish quality is the key to the industry's success.

6: 16: 16 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN t hanked the presenter and Representative Thonas.

HB 217- TOURI SM DI SCLOSURES AND NOTI CES

6:17: 19 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 217, "An Act relating to required onboard

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 9- April 3, 2007



di scl osures and displays about tours, flight seeing operations,
ot her shoreside activities, and visitors bureaus; and providing
for an effective date."

6: 18: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved that the commttee adopt Anendnent 1,
whi ch read:

Page 2, line 1
After "other alternatives may avail abl e":
Insert "for a higher or |ower price"

[ Al though not formally stated, line 2 of the anmendnent reads:
After "other alternatives nay be avail abl e":]

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN i nforned the commttee that Anendnent 1 is a
friendly anmendnment and wll ensure that the cruise ship
passenger understands that other alternative tours are avail able
for a higher or |ower cost.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO obj ect ed. He expressed his concern that
there would be few instances when the price of an alternative

tour will be higher and many instances when the price will be
| ower . The inmplication of equal weight to the words "higher"
and "lower" gives little useful information to the purchaser.

Representative Gatto suggested striking the word "higher"”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, after discussion, noted that the anmendnent
to Arendnent 1 would strike the words "higher or".

6: 20: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LI NDSEY HOLMES, Al aska State Legislature, stated
that she is anenable to action on Amendnent 1, as anmended. She
said that the purpose of HB 217 is to inplenent the intent of
the Alaska Cruise Ship Initiative and avoid unintended
consequences.

6:22: 18 PM

There being no objection, the Anendnent to Anmendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO wi t hdrew hi s objection to Anendnent 1.

There being no objection, Anmendnent 1, as anended, was adopt ed.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -10- April 3, 2007



6:23: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES expl ained that the intent of HB 217 is to
i npl ement the intent of the voters who passed the Al aska Cruise

Ship Initiative ("initiative") while avoiding unintended
consequences. She noted that the bill adds a second alternative
di scl osure requirenent for tour operators that sell tours on-
board the cruise ships. The alternative requires that tour

operators disclose the existence of a paid pronotion and that
other options may be available in the port of call for a |ower

pri ce. In addition, the cruise ship passenger is given contact
information for the convention and visitors bureau in each port
of call. Representative Hol mes expressed her belief that HB 217

conplies with the voter panphlet |anguage of the initiative,
with the language on the initiative ballot, and wth the

initiative sponsor statenent. She added that the comittee
packets include many letters of support for HB 217 and that her
of fice has not recei ved any letters in opposi tion

Representative Holnmes concluded that the intent of t he
initiative was not to harm l|local Al aska businesses; however,
uni ntended consequences result in the disclosure of pricing
structures of |ocal businesses and will limt their ability to
conpet e. This legislation addresses the aforenentioned and
inforns the consuner of his or her options.

6:27:45 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DOLL renar ked:

VWhat | want to do is just sort of clarify where this
cones inside the initiative ... it is actually on page
6b, "A person or other entity aboard a cruise ship
conducting or making a sale of tours, flight seeing
operations or other shore-side activities to be
delivered by a vendor or other entity, shall disclose
both orally and in witing the anount of comm ssion or
percentage of the total sale retained or returned to
the ... person making the sale." ... That 1is, |
think, what we're looking at right now in terns of
intent of the initiative....

6:29: 21 PM
JOHN WH TE, Oaner , Nenana Raft  Adventures, informed the
commttee that this particular initiative is flawed. Hi s

conpany pays a 20 percent comm ssion to the cruise industry and

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -11- April 3, 2007



to other local travel agents and he expressed his concern about
the disclosure of the wholesale pricing arrangenents for his
white-water rafting conpany. M. Wite said that other
industries make arrangenents for discounts based on sales
vol une. He noted that he has lived in Alaska for 32 years and
that the initiative was heavy-handed revenge against the cruise
industry. In the white-water rafting industry, discounts result
in discounts to safety and the cruise ships require stringent
safety procedures fromthe tours they book. M. Wite concl uded
by saying that cruise ship passengers account for two-thirds of
his business and the disclosure of his confidential ©pricing
information is an intrusion on small business owners.

6: 33: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whether M. White feels that the 90-
day Session Initiative is flawed.

MR WHTE replied yes. He added that he felt that the
| egislature is the best judge of the anpbunt of tinme necessary to
conpl ete its business.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO renmarked that if the initiative is flawed,
that would nmean that the voters are flawed in their vote. He
expressed his belief that the voters tell the |egislature what
they want and the |egislature nust deal with what voters have
asked it to do, rather than search for a way to circunvent the
vot e. He said that his respect for the voters supports his
inclination to not make changes in the initiative.

6: 35: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked whet her the rafting conpany's
arrangenment with the cruise ships included limts of liability.

MR. VWH TE responded that the standard practice for liability
insurance is that the booking agents are naned as additional
i nsured; however, essentially the service provider is |liable.
M. Wiite expressed his belief that there is a need for the
regul ation of rafting and kayaking conpanies, and repeated his
concern that a lower price can nmean an unsafe operation

6: 39: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE DOLL expressed concerns wth regard to the

constitutionality of the initiative and thus wanted that to be
addr essed.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -12- April 3, 2007



CHAIR NEUVAN told the commttee that there wll be testinony
fromthe Departnent of Law at a | ater date.

6: 40: 15 PM

STEVE HI TES, owner, Skagway Street Car Conpany, inforned the
conmttee that he is a 34-year resident of Skagway and the owner
of a Skagway sightseeing conpany. He said that his business has
grown with the market, has five year-around enpl oyees, and has

been in business for 21 years. He said that he felt that the
di scl osure statenment in the initiative goes far beyond what the
voters intended. He noted that other businesses are not

required to disclose prices. He stated that his concern is that
his famly business and other tourism businesses that work with

the cruise lines will be forced to disclose confidential and
negotiated pricing to consuners and conpetitors. This bill wll
offer an alternative choice that still nmeets the spirit of the
di sclosure initiative. M. Htes concluded that parts of the
initiative were not clearly stated for the public and, thus, HB
217 wll correct unforeseen ramfications. He wurged the

conm ttee to consider supporting HB 217.

6:44: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO r enar ked:
I"'m going to give you a statenment that | have here
[reading] "Since 1994 Al aska |aw has required oral and

witten disclosure to passengers by cruise lines when
they receive conmmssions for pronoting shore-based

tours.” That, that statenment is a pretty powerful
statenment, because as a person who's bought 15 tickets
on the cruise lines, | can promse you | have never
seen that disclosure. ... Wat the initiative has done

is to it set out as clearly as possible that since
they did not observe the requirenent that maybe the
requi renent was not clear to the ~cruise ship
operators. ..

6:45: 57 PM

TOM TOUGAS, Owner, Four Seasons Tours and Al aska Coach Tours,
said that he and his wfe operate a tour business offering tours
in Seward, Juneau, Ketchikan and Skagway. He infornmed the
commttee that the initiative puts his conpany at a di sadvant age
in its negotiations with the cruise lines due to the fact that

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -13- April 3, 2007



his conpany gives different prices to different cruise |ines.
The disclosure, he said, harns small Al aska businesses and
benefits the cruise lines who wll now conpare pricing wth
ot her operators. M. Tougas expressed his concern that the tine
necessary for the oral disclosure will slow the sales process
and hurt business. He suggested that the changes in HB 217 have
nore inpact on hel ping Al aska busi nesses and | ess on hurting the
crui se |lines.

6:48: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN expressed his understanding that the
initiative requires the shoreside tour operator to disclose to
the consumer how nmuch the operator receives from the price of
t he tour.

MR. TOUGAS responded that the assunption is that the consuner
must be told what percentage or anobunt that the operator retains
fromthe price of the tour. It is inportant to know, he added,
that the cruise lines are doing all of the marketing and
accounting and, thereby, earn a conm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES clarified that, as witten, the initiative
requires the disclosure of the anmount of the commi ssion or the
percentage of the total sale. She gave an exanple of a tour
that cost $100, with a conm ssion of 20 percent or $20, that
woul d reveal to the consunmer the wholesale cost of the tour to
be $80.

MR. TOUGAS added that the comm ssion may not be a consistent
anount when it is based on the volune of tickets sold.

6:52: 41 PM

BRUCE BUSTAMANTE, President, Anchorage Convention and Visitors
Bureau (ACVB), infornmed the conmttee that the ACVB has 1, 250
menbers and its mssion is to build and grow the tourism
industry in Southcentral Al aska. He said that ACVB s review of
the initiative revealed that the disclosure section of the
initiative was danmaging and punitive to its large and snall
menbers. M. Bustamante noted that the ACVB board of directors
has issued a resolution in support of HB 217, and copies of the
resol uti on have been submtted to nmenbers of the | egislature.

6: 55: 39 PM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -14- April 3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked whet her the ACVB was involved in the
canpai gn agai nst the initiative.

VR. BUSTAMANTE replied yes. In further response to
Representati ve Doogan, he said that the [disclosure issue] did
come up during canpai gn.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN referred to the $2 nmillion television
canpai gn and asked whether this argunent should have been nade
prior to Election Day.

MR. BUSTAMANTE said yes. However, HB 217 wll mtigate the
potenti al damage to Al aska busi ness.

CHAI R NEUMAN noted that he was contacted about the initiative
prior to the election.

6: 58: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked M. Bustamante whether the disclosure
was "the worst part” of the initiative.

MR. BUSTAMANTE replied that the disclosure has the nost inpact
on small businesses. However, the initiative causes problens
t hroughout an industry that brings one mllion visitors to
Al aska each year and is a big part of its econony.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that the growh in the «cruise
industry is fairly substantial. He asked whether the ACVB has
objections to the establishment of the Ocean Ranger program or
to other parts of the initiative.

MR. BUSTAMANTE responded that all four parts of the initiative
can harm the growth of the tourism industry in Al aska. The
cruise industry is the state's biggest partner in tourism and
Al aska needs to ensure that it remains conpetitive and does not
| ayer costs on its product.

7: 00: 53 PM

RON PECK, President, and Chief Operating Oficer, Al aska Travel
| ndustry Association (ATIA), testified that ATIA represents
1,050 snmall and |arge businesses. The board of directors of
ATI A has passed a resolution in support of HB 217. M. Peck
read the resolution and concluded by saying that the initiative
under m nes t he basi c busi ness nodel of tour prograns.

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 15- April 3, 2007



7:02:33 PM

[ Al t hough not formally stated the gavel was passed to Vice Chair
Lynn]

VICE CHAIR LYNN inquired as to what portion of the initiative is
of nost concern to ATIA.

MR. PECK responded that ATIA is specifically in support of HB
217 and that the ATIA board has only taken a position to request
nodi fication of +the disclosure portion of the initiative.
Through HB 217, a nodification is made which is good for
busi ness in Alaska and fulfills the intent of initiative.

7:04:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN expressed his desire for the commttee
to focus only on HB 217 and to not continue a "fishing
expedition.™

VI CE CHAI R LYNN acknow edged Representative Johansen's conment.

[ Al t hough not formally stated Vice Chair Lynn returned the gavel
to Chair Neuman]

7:05:17 PM

MR. PECK urged the conmttee to nove forward with HB 217 as it
will continue to support small businesses within Al aska. He
then read froman Al aska Daily News article.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO objected to the testinony.
7:06: 24 PM

PAT LUBY, Advocacy Director, Anerican Association of Retired
Persons (AARP), informed the committee that AARP of Al aska has
no position on HB 217 at this time and wll need nore
information with regard to the inpact on consuners. He said
that AARP's standard on evaluating bills is normally that the
nore consumer information available, the better it is for the
consunmer. This bill, he said, seens to |[imt the information
available to the consumer and he requested clarification from
Represent ati ve Hol nes.

7:08: 29 PM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -16- April 3, 2007



KAREN HESS, owner, Chilkat River Adventures, informed the
committee that passage of HB 217 is vital to her business. She
noted that she has submtted additional witten testinony for
nmenbers to review in their conmttee packets. M. Hess told the
commttee that, in 1991, she and her husband choose to begin a
small tourism business with their savings and hard work. She
said that she was asking for protection for her business, and
for all future businesses, from the inpact of the disclosure
statenment. Ms. Hess expressed her belief in free enterprise and
the Anerican value of opportunities for private business. She
stated that virtually wevery business in Anmerica operates
according to the principles of free enterprise, and the
initiative is discrimnatory to Al aska tourism Ms. Hess read
fromthe Al aska Constitution of the State of Al aska, Article 1.
Declaration of Rights, subsection 1, Inherent Rights. Ms. Hess
stated that the disclosure statenment does not allow her the
enjoynent of the rewards of her industry or equal rights and
opportunities. In fact, the disclosure requirenent violates her
right to privacy and confidentiality. She expressed her hope
that the commttee will support HB 217.

7:12: 42 PM

CH P THOVA testified that he is in support of HB 217 with one
recommendat i on. He commented that HB 217 attenpts to devise an
alternate system of public disclosure regarding the choice of
tours. However, the bill does not address the many |ocal tours
and activities that are purchased prior to the actual cruise
He pointed out that the initiative does not affect these
purchases either; in fact, the l|language of the initiative was
designed for consunmer protection of the passenger on-route
because nmany |ocal businesses are not advertised or recomrended

on-board the ships. It is estimated that in northern Southeast
$250 mllion of business is done by shore-based tours annually
and this amounts to a $50 million profit to cruise I|ines. M.

Thoma said that this anobunt is generally off the books, because
there are no ship taxes or reporting requirenents for shore
trips. Ship passengers, he said, should have a choice of
activities and the ability to shop for inexpensive tours because
that is the basis of consumer protection. He recomrended a
change to HB 217; on page 1, line 13, change "or" to "and.
This change will preserve the consunmer protection |anguage in
the initiative, enable cruise passengers to search further for
| ocal activities, and thereby, satisfy all parties.

7:17:11 PM

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -17- April 3, 2007



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked whether HB 217 changes the
| anguage of the initiative that was approved by the voters.

MR. THOVA said he believes it does.

REPRESENTATI VE  JOHANSEN expressed his concern about t he
potential inpact of changing one word [in an anmendnent]. He
said that he also has a problem with the reference to
"ki ckbacks" by local tour operators and requested that M.
Thoma's witten testinmony be re-drafted with |less inflammtory
| anguage.

7:19:43 PM

M KE W NDRED, enployee, Al aska Travel Adventures, Inc. (ATA),
said that ATA operates 15 shore excursions and books travel wth
the cruise |line passengers and wth independent travelers. He
expressed his support of HB 217. M. Wndred explained that ATA
has developed its pricing structure since its beginnings in the
1980s and that transparency to consuners has to do with retail
prices, rather than pricing structures. For exanple, ATA's Gold
Creek Sal non Bake does not receive nmany conplaints about the
price, but he believes that passengers wll begin to conpare
mar k-ups and will subsequently stay on board to eat. He urged
the commttee to nove HB 217 on to the House Judiciary Standing
Conmi ttee.

7:22: 27 PM

JEREMY GEl SER, enployee of Gastineau @iding and the Juneau
Chapter president of the Alaska Travel Industry Association
(ATI A), speaking as an enployee of Gastineau GCuiding, inforned
the commttee that the pre-election television advertising
canpaign was too expensive to be conducted by small tourism
busi nesses. This bill, he said, will support the intent of the
original initiative, wll benefit I|ocal businesses and wll
pronote the tourist's use of the local convention and visitors
bureaus. M. Ceiser told the commttee that the |ocal operators
want to add |anguage that supports the mneasure as it was
originally proposed.

7:25:36 PM
BOB JANES, Owner, Gastineau Guiding, testified in support of HB
217. He said that his conpany is a local famly-owned business

and is an established and comm ssioned service to the cruise
i ndustry. M. Janes clarified that conmmssions to the cruise

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 18- April 3, 2007



lines are paid by check or electronic deposit and |ocal and
federal taxes are paid. He expressed his belief that the HB 217
| egi sl ation not perfect, but it is a good step to bringing the
| anguage closer to the intent of the initiative.

7:27: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked whether M. Janes had taken a cruise,
and if so, had felt the need for the disclosure of costs for
shore excursi ons.

MR. JANES answered that he took his first cruise this year and
in one port purchased a shore excursion on the ship. He noted
that the benefit to buying a nore expensive shore excursion
affiliated with the ship is that the ship will wait if vyour
party is late returning to the dock. M. Janes added that he is
opposed to the lower price anendnent because the services and
reliability of the excursion nmay be |lower as well.

7: 30: 06 PM

CHAI R NEUVAN advi sed the commttee nenbers that a |egal opinion
wi |l be requested regardi ng the change suggested by M. Thona

7:30:19 PM

BOB WYSOCKI, President, and Chief Executive Oficer, Huna Totem
Corporation (Huna Toten), lcy Strait Point, informed the
conmmittee that Icy Strait Point is Huna Totem's |argest

investment and is the only private port in Alaska. M. Wsocki
noted that as a private port owner, Huna Totem has invested
mllions of dollars to market the Icy Strait Point destination
and attract the cruise ship market. This is a very different
busi ness nodel, he explained, and requires that Huna Totem
recover its investnment through tour sales. lcy Straight Point
has no convention and visitors bureau or other independent tours
operating on the site. Huna Totenmls |ocal economic inpact is an

annual payroll of $1.5 nmillion and enploynment for the residents
of Hoonah. Al'l economc activity in Hoonah is related to the
evolution of Ilcy Strait Point. M. Wsocki stated that Huna

Totem s business has grown from 32 visits by cruise ships to 80
expected visits this year, and he related his support for the
di scl osure of Huna Totenis relationship with the cruise ships as
di scl osure pronotes safe and quality prograns. He said that the
cruise industry earns its funds by marketing prograns, receivVving
booki ngs, and coll ecting revenues. Huna Tot em does not support
the disclosure of its business margins. He stated that

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -19- April 3, 2007



encour agi ng rut hl ess conpetition based on proprietary
i nformati on can not be helpful to Al askans and snmall busi nesses.
Consuner demand is driven by the quality and value of the
product, not by margins, conmm ssions, or efficiency of volune.
Huna Totem has nade an investnent in the conmmunity, the state,
and the people of Al aska, and fully supports HB 217. However

for Icy Strait Point as a unique port, the reference to a |oca

convention and visitor bureau does not apply, and thus he
request ed an anmendnent.

7:37:44 PM

CHAI R NEUMAN requested that M. Wsocki submt his suggestion
for an amendnent to Representative Hol nes. Chair Neuman noted
that the legislative process is a discovery process and issues
need to be studied in depth. He then read the nanes of sone of
t he busi nesses present and asked for a show of hands as to how
many support HB 217. Chair Neuman noted that galley opposition
to the bill was nom nal

7:39: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated that approximately one mllion
passengers a year cone to Alaska; however, they are not
represented by today's testinony. The initiative was to address
the concerns of those visiting the state and thereby, affected
those running the tourism businesses in the state. He expressed
his belief that visitors desire transparency. The initiative
was inspired by the concerns of an owner of a flight service who
stated that 40 percent of her profit was paid to cruise ships.
In addition, she expressed her fear that the cruise industry
woul d refuse to sell her tours if her concerns were nade public.
Representative Gatto said that this bill tends to nodify the
initiative and that he is very cautious when the legislature
attenpts to change an initiative passed by a vote of the people
of the state.

7:42: 35 PM
CHAI R NEUVAN stated that further testinony nust refer to HB 217
7:43: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN opined that discussion of HB 217 nust
i nclude discussion of the intent of the initiative, and he

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE - 20- April 3, 2007



requested to see authorization that permts the chair to
restrict debate.

CHAI R NEUMAN r emar ked:
Represent ati ve Doogan, as the chair of this commttee,

| certainly control the tone of the debate, and | did
state earlier that we would get a |egal opinion and

have sonme discovery. I never, | never cut anybody

back, but | wanted to namke sure, that, | want to stay

on the bill here.
REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN said, "I renew ny request.”
7:44: 03 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN opined that the conmttee nust realize that
HB 217 inpacts the initiative and nmenbers will need to review
the bill in a broad context. He said that he was supportive of

the legislation, but was concerned about how nuch the
| egi sl ature should change the initiative.

CHAI R NEUMAN announced that HB 217 would be held over for
further discussion and with public testinony open.

7:45:08 PM
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Special Commttee on Econom c Devel opnent, International Trade
and Tourism neeting was adjourned at 7:45 p. m

HOUSE EDT COW TTEE -21- April 3, 2007



